Greater Wellington Response 22.05.22 - 22.05.23

From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 1 December 2022 5:16 pm
To:

g ————

Subject: Re. your notifications today about Interwaste - WGN110357

Hello I

We have received your six emails and notifications today.

| understand [Jjjjj from our environmental protection team has been in touch recently to arrange a
meeting with staff at il to hear your concerns and also explain how we will respond to
complaints received about the Interwaste site. We would prefer this meeting to occur before
sending duty officers on site to respond to odour complaints.

However please note that | am already in discussion with Interwaste about these notifications and
your notification yesterday.

Nga mihi, Emily

Emily McDowall
Resource Advisor Kaitohutohu — Environmental Regulation

Q Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

021 191 9689
100 Cuba Street. Wellington

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz

Please note that my usual days of work are Wednesdays, Thursdays and Fridays.



From: [

Sent: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 3:26 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: Re: Odour notification - Ozone Contact Centre No. 23415

Hi Emily

Blue bins are for Document destruction. These bins are empty, ready and waiting for our Napier
driver to pickup.

No odours are generated from these.

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz

From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2022 3:21:47 PM

To:
Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: RE: Odour notification - Ozone Contact Centre No. 23415

Thanks ], ! will save your response and the photos to file.
| presume the blue wheelie bins, if they contained waste, were outside for a minimal length of time.
Kind regards, Emily

From: I

Sent: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 3:11 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: RE: Odour notification - Ozone Contact Centre No. 23415

Good afternoon, Emily

| have been back on site since 12:30pm and have not noticed anything to be causing an offensive
odour. The site has been relatively quiet most of the afternoon.



Reviewing our camera footage, our tipper truck went to the landfill around 1pm (the door was open
for 2 minutes as the truck left, and 2 minutes once the truck arrived back).

Searching 15 minutes either side of the complaint time of 2:01pm, we had one truck come back to
site after making collections, there was no other movements.

| will include this to our complaints register.

Regards

INTERWASTE

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz

l
| N H A LO r u\@ ‘ h-— We now supply medical gas
P A2 J and liquid nitrogen, contact

Medical oxygen ‘ | us foracompetitive quote.

TOITU

&) o

From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 2:59 pm

To:

Subject: FW: Odour notification - Ozone Contact Centre No. 23415

Hello-

Notification received this afternoon, please add this to your complaints register.
Do you know what might have produced odour around 2pm this afternoon?

Thanks, Emily

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 2:05 pm

To: I

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 23415 [EMAIL] - Created by || NENEGE

Ozone Contact Centre



Transaction: 23415 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]
Created: 30 Nov 2022 @ 02:0lpm by IS NEEEN N EE

]
Type/Subtype: Env Protection Incident / Env Protection Incident all types

Priority: 1 HOUR
Action: EMAIL
Your Position:

Message:

Transaction no. 23415, received 30 Nov 2022 at 02:01pm has been assigned to
you. Please Schedule the action immediately.

Notifier:

Source Parcel:

TA: Wellington City Council

Details: The caller said that there is a toxic smell coming from
Interwaste. The caller said that it is about a 6/6 atm and they're getting
a lot of complaints from customers. Q> What is the Sink? A> Q> What is the
Affected Site? A> Q> What is the Activity Type of the Source? A> Q> What is
the Environmental Effect? A> Q> What are the Investigation Findings? A> Q>
What is the Sub-Type? A>

Contact details:

Address: 12 Broken Hill Road

Porirua

5022

Phone: cel NN NN NN
Temp phone: ; Ref:

Email:

This message was automatically generated by the Ozone Contact Centre

WF/30/0/0/0/AFTER/R/EMAIL/R/

ATTENTION: This correspondence is confidential and intended for the named recipient(s) only. If you
are not the named recipient and receive this correspondence in error, you must not copy, distribute
or take any action in reliance on it and you should delete it from your system and notify the sender
immediately. Unless otherwise stated, any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the
author, and do not represent those of the organisation.

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
Sent: Thursday, 1 December 2022 9:44 am

To: I

Subject: Odour notification today - No.23419 - WGN110357

Hil,

Please check CCTV and let me know how long the roller door has been open this morning between
around 9.05-9.35am?

| have received the below odour complaint, a complaint at 9.11am an update at 9.35am “the door is
still open”.

Please could you also let me know what type of wastes were being stored and processed at this
time.

Thanks, Emily

Transaction no. 23419, received 01 Dec 2022 at 08:37am has been assigned to
you. Please Schedule the action immediately.

Notifier:

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: Porirua broken Hill road Interwaste.Smell coming from Interwaste
is nauseating and unable to breathe properly and run business. 6/6 smells
toxic, plastic, metallic Q> What is the Sink? A> Q> What is the Affected
Site? A> Q> What is the Activity Type of the Source? A> Q> What is the
Environmental Effect? A> Q> What are the Investigation Findings? A> Q> What
is the Sub-Type? A>

Emily McDowall

Resource Advisor Kaitohutohu — Environmental Regulation

o Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

021 191 9689
100 Cuba Street, Wellington

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz

Please note that my usual days of work are Wednesdays. Thursdays and Fridays.



From: [

Sent: Friday, 21 October 2022 2:05 pm
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Please let me know some more details about your notifications today

Hello Emily

Thanks for the response i'll be happy to answer these questions and i'll add more information to the
bottom.

e Is the roller door open / was it when you noticed the smell?
e The door was shut at the time
e How long is/has the roller door been open for?

e N/A
e Canyou see any steam?
* No

¢ Do you have any thoughts of what specifically could be creating the odour (e.g. odour
from skip / bins / bags / which material etc.)?

e Interwaste was emptying their sumps

* |l mentions Interwaste has been cleaning the site — what do you mean by this please,
waterblasting the yard? Cleaning out bins with hoses? Emptying the sumps with a sucker
truck? Please let me know some more details.

e Interwaste was emptying their sumps

My staff have logged this event occurring from 1144hrs - 1230hrs approx. At the time Interwaste
knew that our roller door + front door was open and that customers were coming and going from
the store. Interwaste gave no warning to my staff that this was going to happen and they began
releasing VOC's that smelt like rancid dog meat and feces beyond their legal boundary. It was thick,
heavy and inescapable as it filled the entire vicinity and filled my warehouse with this unknown
cocktail mixture of VOCs.There was also a smell of burning rubber in the air which | believe may have
been the diesel engine on the truck pump.

We had customers dry heaving and my staff were really embarrassed. Due to the seriousness of the
situation my staff had to close down operations, during our busiest trading hours, and lock
themselves inside until the VOC's cleared. While locked inside, the entire warehouse was filled with
this unknown mixture of VOCs. This lasted for 45 to 50 minutes and once it was safe to open the
roller doors again it took half an hour for the VOCs to not be detectable by smell inside our
warehouse. This was with multiple HEPA filters running inside.

3 customers in total made direct complaints about this to my staff.

Best Regards



On Fri, Oct 21, 2022 at 1:14 PM Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz> wrote:

Hi

Thanks for your two notifications which have recently come through. | can’t call you right now but
please could you let me know:

e Isthe roller door open / was it when you noticed the smell?

¢ How long is/has the roller door been open for?

e Canyou see any steam?

e Do you have any thoughts of what specifically could be creating the odour (e.g. odour from
skip / bins / bags / which material etc.)?

* [l mentions Interwaste has been cleaning the site — what do you mean by this please,
waterblasting the yard? Cleaning out bins with hoses? Emptying the sumps with a sucker
truck? Please let me know some more details.

Thank you,

Emily

From: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 21 October 2022 12:55 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: FW: Ozone Contact Centre # 23174 [EMAIL]

Hey Emily — FYI this one just came in @

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 21 October 2022 12:53 pm

To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 23174 [EMAIL]

Ozone Contact Centre

Transaction: 23174 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]
Created: 21 Oct 2022 @ 12:48pm



Type/Subtype: Env Protection Incident / Env Protection Incident all types
Priority: 1 HOUR

Action: EMAIL

Your Position: EPOINBOX

Message:

Transaction no. 23174, received 21 Oct 2022 at 12:48pm has been assigned to
you. Please Schedule the action immediately.

Notifier: [N N

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: 12 Broken Hill Road heavy thick smell coming from the Interwaste
facility smells like sewage and is a 10/10. Q> What is the Sink? A> Q> What
is the Affected Site? A> Q> What is the Activity Type of the Source? A> Q>
What is the Environmental Effect? A> Q> What are the Investigation
Findings? A> Q> What is the Sub-Type? A>

Contact details:

Address: I NS N EEE

KENEPURU

PORIRUA 5022

Phone: day |l 1 N

Temp phone: ; Ref:

Email:

This message was automatically generated by the Ozone Contact Centre

WF/15/0/0/0/AFTER/R/EMAIL/U/EPOINBOX

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

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz

| N H A LO ’; ,l @ & Wenow supply medical gas
c(,t} and liquid nitrogen, contact
Medical oxygen ( I usforacompetitive quote.

TOITU
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From: I

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 10:27 am
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

C: I \\ice! Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: RE: Odour notification 7.12.22 No. 23454

All the doors are shut and as far as | know, they haven’t been open for more than a couple of
minutes at the time. | have been checking outside the building every hour or so, and there is no
smell outside the building at all. There is no offensive smell inside the building either. Our
administrator checked our sump around an hour ago and there was no offensive smell detected.

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

| N H A I_O L ”) "@ §  Wenow supply medical gas
‘ WJ and liquid nitrogen, contact

Medical oxygen . . us for a competitive quote.

TOITU

p SITE
100%

From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 10:09 am

To:
Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>
Subject: Odour notification 7.12.22 No. 23454




Hello-

Please could you check the roller door is closed and see if any activities on-site at present could be
causing a particularly strong odour.

Thank you, Emily

From: I

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 9:57 am
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Ozone Contact Centre # 23454 [EMAIL] - Created by || NG

Sorry Emily, here is another one.

Nga mihi,

)

Kaitohutohu / Resource Advisor
Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao
100 Cuba Street, Te Aro, Wellington

Email:

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 9:49 am

To: I

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 23454 [EMAIL] - Created by ||} NG

Ozone Contact Centre

Transaction: 23454 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]
Created: 07 Dec 2022 @ 09:38am by [N NN N I

i
Type/Subtype: Env Protection Incident / Env Protection Incident all types

Priority: 1 HOUR
Action: EMAIL
Your Position:

Transaction no. 23454, received 07 Dec 2022 at 09:42am



Details: Caller rang to report an offensive odour coming from Interwaste,
smelling of processed medical waste. It was first smelt around 8am but
wasn't too horrible, but now at around 9:30am it is absolutely horrendous
and causing customers and staff in the callers shop to dry heave and
frantically close the doors - although it just traps the smell inside.
Rated 6/6.

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

Sent: Friday, 21 October 2022 7:02 pm
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Re. notifications received today

Good afternoon, Emily

As part of our regular maintenance schedule, our trade waste sump and wheel wash were vacuum
cleaned today. This process would have taken approximately 30 minutes.

| would like to note that:

- There was a stronger than normal smell because of this maintenance, however this is an
important part of maintaining our trade waste system and process.

- This operation is required annually.

- Both our CEO and | were on site at the time and considered the weather favourable (IE wind
was blowing to the east) and believe the process was quick and well managed.
- Our maintenance engineer had tried to schedule this for the weekend however today was

the only time slot available.

- We noticed a garbage truck out the front of 10 Broken Hill Road with its rear compartment
open at the same time our sumps were being cleaned (Attached a photo, however, did not
get a picture of the rear door being open and our CCTV does not cover this part of the road).

Cheers

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz



From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 21 October 2022 2:15 pm

To S

Subject: Re. notifications received today

Hi again |}

Please let me know if any operations today at Interwaste could have produced odour past the
property boundary.

Thank you, Emily

Emily McDowall

Resource Advisor Kaitohutohu — Environmental Regulation

q Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

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

Sent: Tuesday, 6 December 2022 4:45 pm
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

cc I ¢! Priest <Nigel @interuaste.co.nz>

Subject: RE: Ozone Contact Centre No. 23422 [EMAIL] - Created by | NG
Good afternoon Emily

I am in Auckland today, Christchurch tomorrow so yes, | have copied in |||} NN -

_-IS normally onsite most of the time so will be able to give you

real time updates when required. | do ask that you please keep me copied in with all
communications, so | have a record.

Looking back on Thursday morning last week, | cannot see a time where the roller door was open for
more than 5 minutes at a time. There was an incident in the morning with a driver hitting the door
but this was closed very promptly and repairs completed within 2 hours.

| was on site from 6am preparing for a meeting / site inspection | had with MPI, the site was clean,
tidy and everyone was working to get work done so they could go and enjoy the work function we
had that afternoon.

| also had a courtesy call with ||l Yesterday afternoon. We had a good discussion around
odour monitoring, and he will be providing me a quote for third party site odour monitoring.

| spoke with the neighbour on Thursday that lives behind the || site (sti!l immediately
adjacent to our site), his main issue is noise and we are looking at ways to minimise that including
changing our LPG forklifts to electric. He was also full of misinformation, making a lot of the same
claims that jjjjhas been.

Our complaints register has been updated.

The comment made about catching up on a backlog of waste is also incorrect, we have been working
24 hours to keep up with demand. As you will see in the attached screenshot, there is no more
waste onsite than usual.

Cheers

INTERWASTE w

riLternaciornal vwwasice ;..\LJ

www.interwaste.co.nz




From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 1 December 2022 9:27 pm

To: I

Subject: RE: Ozone Contact Centre No. 23422 [EMAIL] - Created by Kaiya Howarth

Thanks JJjjj When you are next at Kenepuru, please could you check your CCTV from ~9.05-9.35am
and tell me how long the roller door was open within that time.

We have our department Christmas function tomorrow, it’s that time of year!
Yes they can, to a point.

| was thinking too, is there a lead Kenepuru-based staff member | should contact as well as you if

you are off-site given you’re the | |} < <. to check what is happening real-time in
response to complaints? Thanks.

Cheers, Emily

From: [

Sent: Thursday, 1 December 2022 6:32 pm
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Ozone Contact Centre No. 23422 [EMAIL] - Created by || NG

Hi Emily

Apologies for the late reply. We had an MPI audit this morning from 9am until 11:30am and no
unusual odours were noticed. Most staff have been off site since 12:30pm for a Christmas Function.

Were all of these complaints made today?

Can a member of the public make multiple complaints in a single day? (Can they make as many
complaints as they want?)

Cheers

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz




From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, December 1, 2022 4:00:58 PM

To: I

Subject: FW: Ozone Contact Centre No. 23422 [EMAIL] - Created by || NG

From: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 1 December 2022 1:12 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Fwd: Ozone Contact Centre # 23422 [EMAIL] - Created by || NG

Another one from Interwaste for ya

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, December 1, 2022 1:09 PM

To: Environmental Protection

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 23422 [EMAIL] - Created by_

Ozone Contact Centre

Transaction: 23422 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]

Created: 01 Dec 2022 € 12:59pm by H NN N I

Eype/Subtype: Env Protection Incident / Env Protection Incident all types
Priority: 1 HOUR

Action: EMAIL

Your Position: EPOINBOX

Message:

Transaction no. 23422, received 01 Dec 2022 at 12:59pm has been assigned to
you. Please Schedule the action immediately.

Notifier:

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: Caller has rung to report the foul odour coming from Interwaste
next door. This morning the smell was very prevelant at 8am, getting worse
and worse currently rated a 6/6. They have closed their doors multiple
times and have had customers walk away because they couldn't handle the
smell. It's a mixture of nausiating chemical smell and human faeces or
rotten flesh. They are at and have had two of their whole salers say they
don't want to stock them anymore because of the horrible smell. Even when
stock has come in, the caller has to pack it away to avoid being
contiminated. The smell hangs around the whole place.

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
Sent: Thursday, 1 December 2022 3:45 pm

To: I

Subject: Do you have time for a phone call this afternoon?

il
Please give me a call over the next hour. We have received multiple notifications today.

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

Sent: Thursday, 27 April 2023 3:26 pm
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>;-

Subject: RE: Please respond to 2x odour complaints

Kia Ora Emily,

Thank you for your email, my name is ||} ' hz\ < recently joined International

Waste Limited in the past 5 weeks as the ||| G- 2 out of Wellington, taking
over from

Responding to complaint ref 24384 and 24383, please refer to the result of our internal investigation
to the complaints lodge to the Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao, 26 April 2023 15:58 and 26
April 2023 16:08.

Investigation completed on Thursday 27 April 2023 between 08:30 to 14:00 by
-

e Review the CCTV footage and let me know if the roller door was open at 3:58pm today, and

if so, for how long.

e CCTVreviewed from 15:55 to 16:00 reveals that both of our roller doors were never opened
during the time in questioned. Please refer to attached screenshots from our CCTV system.

e What waste was being processed at this time?

e During the time in questioned, Interwaste Wellington were processing both Medical and
Quarantine waste inside our plant utilising autoclave.

e Were any issues noted on site?

o After speaking to our team members that operated within the Wellington site, there were no
abnormality to be reported during timing in questioned.

e Please send me photos of the stream out the back of the property at the location circled;
make it obvious this is the location of the photographs by taking one looking back at the site
for instance, please refer to the attached images.

e Due to the density of blackberry vegetation and safety and wellbeing concerns, we were only
able to obtain images of the stream from our property facing Northwest to the adjacent
forest.

| hope our internal investigation findings addresses the complaints ref 24384 and 24383, however,
please do not hesitate to contact me if you require further information.

| look forward to working with yourself and the Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao.

Nga mihi nui,

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd



From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 4:54:05 PM

To: I

Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: Please respond to 2x odour complaints

Hilll

Please could you add the below 2x complaints received this afternoon to your complaints register
and let me know:
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
for instance.

4 GWRC Landinfo4 Mepping for the Grester Welington Region GIS Map Gallery

Thanks,
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 4:11:06 PM

To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 24384 [EMAIL]

Ozone Contact Centre

Transaction: 24384 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]
Created: 26 Apr 2023 @ 04:08pm

Message:

Transaction no. 24384, received 26 Apr 2023 at 04:08pm has been assigned to

you.
Details: customer rang about a odur smell coming from 12 broken hill road
kenepuru. [..] the customer is saying the neighbour has been dumping the

waste in a stream behind the house. The odur is extreme and is wanting
someone to go over to check on the matter.

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 4:00:09 PM

To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 24383 [EMAIL]

Ozone Contact Centre

Transaction: 24383 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]
Created: 26 Apr 2023 @ 03:58pm

Details: Caller is reporting a sewage smell that is a 4/6 coming from
Interwaste at 12 Broken hill road. This is impacting on the day to day
working as they are unable to go outside or open windows.

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

Sent: Monday, 1 May 2023 3:31 pm
To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>; || EEEEEEIEGNNEEEEEEEEE

Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Interwaste odour complaint

Hi[Jjijat this point in time we are operating as per usual. We are happy to investigate further if you
want us to.

KIND REGARDS

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz

| N H A I_O ”\ c‘ § Wenow supply medical gas
q” =, and liquid nitrogen, contact

Medical oxygen ¢ usforacompetitive quote.

TOITU
(=) |SITE
100%

GOLD



From: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, May 1, 2023 3:09 PM

To: I

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Interwaste odour complaint

il

We have received an odour complaint for Interwaste at 12 Broken Hill Road, described as a strong
chemical smell. The notification was received today at 2.57pm

Kind regards, || NN

He/Him

q Kaiapiha Taiao| Environmental Protection Officer

Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

100 Cuba St, Te Aro, Wellington 6011

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

Sent: Tuesday, 16 May 2023 3:08 pm

To: I

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: Odour complaints 16 May

il

We have received two odour complaints today. The first was at 1114am which described the odour
as “a very bad smell” — | did not attend this notification

The second was at 1306 which described the odour as “like faeces, processing flesh and chemicals” —
| did attend this notification, details below:

Arrived on site at 1354
Initial odour — pleasant sweet/vape odour
Wind- Southerly (mild)

Stood downwind of Interwaste for 10 mins — at no time did | detect any odour coming from
interwaste — Left site at 1406

Regards, I

He/Him

o Kaiapiha Taiao| Environmental Protection Officer

Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

100 Cuba St, Te Aro, Wellington 6011

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz




From: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 16 May 2023 11:26 am

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: FW: Ozone Contact Centre # 24537 [EMAIL] - Created by [l

Hi Emily,

| attended this notification yesterday at ||| -

Some notes of my visit:
Notification received at 1409
Arrived on site at 1456

Initial impression of odour was a pleasant sweet/vape/strawberry odour. SW wind light breeze. |
stood outside the front door of ||l next to the chain fence during my visit

1457 - Waste management truck arrived and entered facility through roller doors then immediately
closed doors. No odour detected.

1459 — Waste management truck left facility roller door immediately closed — No odour detected
1500 - Interwaste van arrived and parked outside roller doors, did not enter facility

1506 — left site. At no time during my visit did | detect any odour coming from Interwaste

| also received a notification (trans 24536) at 8.51 of smell of burning flesh and hair. | contacted
Interwaste who said that during this time they were having a staff BBQ in the courtyard so | did not
attend.

Thanks, i}

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, 15 May 2023 2:14 pm

To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 24537 [EMAIL] - Created by |}




Ozone Contact Centre

Transaction: 24537 [ View Transaction >> Click here to view your CC
Transaction ]

Created: 15 May 2023 @ 02:0%pm by SN H I B
Type/Subtype: Env Protection Incident / Env Protection Incident all types
Priority: 1 HOUR

Action: EMAIL

Your Position: EPOINBOX

Message:

Transaction no. 24537, received 15 May 2023 at 02:09pm has been assigned to
you. Please Schedule the action immediately.

Notifier: [ M

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: The customer called again to inform that their warehouse smells
like voatised hazardous waste. They mentioned that the smell is coming from
12 broken hill road. Q> What is the Sink? A> Q> What is the Affected Site?
A> Q> What is the Activity Type of the Source? A> Q> What is the
Environmental Effect? A> Q> What are the Investigation Findings? A> Q> What
is the Sub-Type? A>

Contact details:

Address: py NS N NN

KENEPURU

PORIRUA 5022

Phone: day E B

Temp phone: ; Ref:

Email:

This message was automatically generated by the Ozone Contact Centre

WF/15/0/0/0/AFTER/R/EMAIL/U/EPOINBOX



From: [

Sent: Tuesday, 16 May 2023 3:02 pm
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

cc:

Subject: 16 May interwaste odour complaints
Hey Emily,

Two odour complaints received for Interwaste today. The first complaint was at 1108am which | did
not have capacity to attend.

“"The caller mentioned that there is very bad smell coming from their
next door neighbour at 12 broken hill road. They alo mentioned that
one of their employees is now suffering a condition where there lungs
are deteouring due to all the chemial emissions.”

The second odour complaint came in at 1306 which | did attend.

“"The caller mentioned that there is a very bad smell coming from 12
Broken hill Rd. They mentioned that it smelles like feeces, processing
flesh and checmicals”

| arrived on site at 1354, initial odour was a pleasant sweet/vape smell. Mild S wind. Stood
downwind of Interwaste for 10 min, at no time did | detect any odour from Interwaste

He/Him

q Kaiapiha Taiao| Environmental Protection Officer

Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

100 Cuba St, Te Aro, Wellington 6011

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz




From: Emily McDowall
Sent: Friday, 10 February 2023 1:05 pm

To: I
Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; || NNEGEGEGEE

Subject: Recent notifications which | mentioned at today's meeting

il

Thanks for the chat earlier. Please find below the recent notifications which | mentioned today.

The first notification was actually from December, but | was only informed of that odour assessment
recently.

Apologies for not having passed these on earlier.

14 December 2022 at 2.18pm

Transaction no. 23509, received 14 Dec 2022 at 02:18pm

Notifier: [removed]

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: The caller mentioned that there is formaldehyde smell coming from
the medical waste from the Interwaste at broken hill road.

Our duty officer attended this incident and conducted a ten minute odour assessment.

Odour was detected but not at a level considered offensive or objectionable.

Thursday 9 February 11.22am

Transaction no. 23898, received 09 Feb 2023 at 11:22am

Notifier: [removed]

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: [removed] building reeks inside because of the Medical Waste odour
from Interwaste. He would give it a 4 out of 6. He has asked to log a
statutory nuisance and asked for the trans number.



Thursday 9 February 5.27pm

Transaction no. 23907, received 09 Feb 2023 at 05:27pm

Notifier: [removed, different to the above notifier]

Source Parcel:

TA: Porirua City Council

Details: The caller reported that he had smells very bad from the Inmter
waste wellington.The caller said the smell was like dead animal and melted
plastic.

Contact details:
Address: [removed]

Our duty officer attended the site and conducted an odour assessment.

Odour was detected but not at a level considered O or O.

Please ensure these three notifications are recorded on Interwaste’s complaints register.

And let me know if there were any abnormal operations yesterday.

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
Sent: Friday, 17 February 2023 2:18 pm

To: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>;_

Subject: Re. your responses to Qs about odour notification 14.02.23

Hello Nigel, JJili]

Thank you both for the two letters you provided in response to my queries relating to the 14
February odour notification.

Thank you too for updating your odour complaints register accordingly (this appears to be shown in
Figure 2).

It is useful context to know about the scheduled maintenance that was carried out on the roller
door.

We will not be investigating this notification further.
Kind regards, Emily

’ Emily McDowall

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
Sent: Friday, 3 March 2023 3:39 pm

To:

Subject: RE: Update from Friday and Monday statutory nuisance

Hello-

Thanks for your email and sorry it has taken me a while to have a chance to reply.

| did ask Interwaste questions about this skip after receiving Jjjjjemail, however the response was
that it is not an Interwaste bin. | can that it the bin is marked infectious waste, but no Interwaste
logo is shown in the video footage and | consider we do not have sufficient evidence to associate it
with Interwaste (particularly given many different companies access the landfill via this road). |
cannot take this further for that reason and also as there does not seem to be any breach; for
instance, we did not detect an objectionable odour on this occasion.

We did, however, issue Interwaste an infringement notice for a previous odour notification, on 12
January this year.

Please continue calling the hotline if you consider odour is offensive or objectionable.

Kind regards,

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

Sent: Tuesday, 28 February 2023 11:39 am
To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>; Info <Info@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Update from Friday and Monday statutory nuisance

Hi Emily,

The video attached at bottom of email which you have seen already.

If you could forward this onwards too anyone involved that would be great, too- -anyone
that is involved, | don’t have the emails on hand.

this is my personal experience dealing with that skip that was out Friday that absouletly stunk!

All I can say, is after learning from [Jjjjj thatJjjj came out & said it’s just environmental waste
from the ground and it was nothing to do with interwaste, doesn't sit well with me, really that skip is
too do with interwaste.

| see those skips all the time in there, it’s almost mocking my intelligence on this whole situation, &
yes the business was someone else collecting it but isn’t it interwastes business too make sure things
are done correctly and legal?

My honest personal experience Emily and whoever sees this, that was not just earth from this land
of nz with waste management it was FROM interwaste as they make out of it. It wreaked!!

| have smelt plenty of those smells that’s come from that place inside that skip aswell as numerous
of times seeing them leave there stuff out on the road | mean even in my video you can see
interwaste trucks behind parked on the side. There were multiple of smells going on in there not just
muddy earth. & too be told what was said at broken hill road Tuesday, Doesn’t really sit well with
me being totally, honest.

| can’t imagine these skips are cleaned out regularly that’s a fact as | have seen this business for the
last 6 years of my life or longer. so | appreciate whoever came out yesterday but | don’t appreciate
being told it’s just earth as it’s not just earth from the ground and nothing too do with interwaste.

Feels like an excuse in my opinion and too just brush it on under the rug,as we have been treated for
multiple of years I’'m not saying anyone personally I’'m saying the GWRC and this toxic situation. |



appreciate anyone who is genuinely helping but trust has been lost with the GWRC aswell as being
threatened buy someone who works for the GWRC In the past through reddit, | could carry on about
this person but | won’t go on as|[Jjjjj from the GWRC is helping me try too get an interview with
someone important that can speak too me about the anxiety that man brought us including

interwaste || G - 2!/ the people that have there hands in

that business.

| wanted too message as | was the person dealing with it and illegally there skips were out on the
road and directly infront of our doors rolling in wreaking causing stress and statutory noissance. I've
Seen these skips numerous of times.

So please cc everyone

Thank you |l



From: Emily McDowall
Sent: Friday, 3 March 2023 3:41 pm

To: Nigel Priest <Nige|@interwaste.co.nz>;_

Subject: RE: Questions about bin left on Broken Hill Road 24.02.23

Hello Nigel and i},

Apologies for the delay in responding and thanks for your reply.

| won’t follow this notification up further, but | would appreciate if you could send me some a few
photos of your bins (showing the top, sides and markings) for the record.

It is great to hear that a new layer has been added to the biofilter.

Regards, Emily

From: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>
Sent: Monday, 27 February 2023 10:25 am

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>; ||| G
cc: I

Subject: RE: Questions about bin left on Broken Hill Road 24.02.23

Hi Emily,

With the link to the incident as posted on YouTube, we have a few concerns:

e Unsubstantiated claim that it is an Interwaste bin.

e No indication of who the driver was who dropped this bin.

e This bin has none of our markings and is clearly not an Interwaste bin.

o None of our bins have lids.

e We strictly adhere to our conditions of Operation and have never dumped a bin roadside.

e The volume of rubbish trucks of numerous types operating on this particular road is
considerable. To lay fault at Interwaste at any slight opportunity presented, when the carrier
is actually unknown is quite a spurious claim.

e We have no information relating to the details of this bin.



Also attached are the pictures confirming the recent addition to the Biofilter. A substantial new layer
has been added as the one of the suggested actions as given in the meeting dated 09 December
2022.

Any further questions please do not hesitate to call.

Regards,

NIGEL PRIEST
NATIONAL OPERATIONS MANAGER

INTERWASTE
International Waste Ltd

P: 09 277 1828 | M: +64 021 229 9814

www.interwaste.co.nz

=~ |SITE
o 100%

This email is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not read, use, copy
or distribute this email or attachments. If you have received this message in error, please delete it from your system and
contact us immediately by return email or telephone 0800 102 131.

Please consider the environment before you print this e-mail.

From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Sunday, February 26, 2023 1:09 PM

To: I \ise! Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>
cc:

Subject: Questions about bin left on Broken Hill Road 24.02.23

Hellojjjjj, Nigel,

Interwaste’s neighbour linked me this video on Friday. Interwaste leaving infectious waste outside of
their property - YouTube




Please let me know:

- Why has this skip been left on the road? (As opposed to being inside the Interwaste factory
as we have discussed.)

- Isiton its way to the landfill or coming back from the landfill?

- If onits way back, why has it not been properly scraped or washed out?

- What is the substance visible inside?

- What business/DHB did this skip originate from?

- Whyis the lid open?

- How long was this skip left on the street?

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



From: Environmental Protection
Sent: Wednesday, 26 April 2023 4:58 pm

To I

Subject: RE: Odour notification 26.04.23 No.24383

Kia ora |

Just letting you know that we have been called away to another pressing incident so are not able to
attend this odour incident at the moment. However, we have asked questions of the site about this
alleged incident.

Nga mihi,

Environmental Protection team

From: Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 26 April 2023 4:00 pm

To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Ozone Contact Centre # 24383 [EMAIL]

Ozone Contact Centre

Message:

Transaction no. 24383, received 26 Apr 2023 at 03:58pm has been assigned to
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
working as they are unable to go outside or open windows. Q> What is the
Sink? A> Q> What is the Affected Site? A> Q> What is the Activity Type of
the Source? A> Q> What is the Environmental Effect? A> Q> What are the
Investigation Findings? A> Q> What is the Sub-Type? A>

Contact details:

Address: p NN NN NN

KENEPURU

PORIRUA 5022

Phone: cel N NN NN
Temp phone: ; Ref:

Enail: D



This message was automatically generated by the Ozone Contact Centre

WF/15/0/0/0/AFTER/R/EMAIL/U/EPOINBOX



From: Emily McDowall
Sent: Friday, 10 February 2023 1:26 pm

To:

Subject: RE: Interwaste notification 09.02.23

Hello-

Yes, we received the notification from the other tenant. Our duty officer attended the site and
conducted an odour assessment. Whilst odour was detected, the officer did not consider it offensive
or objectionable in this instance.

| have saved your below email to file for our records.
| had a compliance discussion with Interwaste this morning.
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

From:
Sent: Thursday, 9 February 2023 5:53 pm
To: Notifications <Notifications@gw.govt.nz>

C: I Eily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Subject: Interwaste notification

To whom it may concern.

This report is for interwaste located at 12 broken hill road, kenepuru, porirua.



Upon arriving at work this morning | could smell processed medical waste in the carpark of 10
broken hill road emanating from 12 broken hill road. It is a strange sickly chemical smell. Upon
entering the building the entire inside smelt like autoclave emissions and a faint smell of spit / fecal
matter as if they had been working throughout the night. | would rate this smell as a 4/6.

This continued on throughout the day with constant wafts of autoclave emissions, processed
medical waste, bodily fluids and fecal matter rolling into our building.

When | was sitting in my office it started to fill up with the smell of autoclave emissons mixed with a
faint fecal smell, almost like diarrhea.

Whilst sitting at my computer | started to develop a headache and hot flushes that came on fairly
quickly after being exposed to these emissions which did not cease until | left the room and went
right into the back of the warehouse (this is the area with the "cleanest" air.)

Throughout the day I've had to put on masks on here and there in a vain attempt to protect my
health from these emissions.

At approx 4.50pm the smell suddenly went to a 6/6 and when | looked out the window | could see
that the door was wide open and the smell was rolling out as shown in the attached photo.

When | left work at 5pm it absolutely reeked outside. About 15 minutes after | left | recieved a text
message from another tenant in the area advising me that, and | quote "it fucken stinks right now

bro

| advised this person to contact the council so hopefully you have a record of this.

Best Regards



From: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, 1 May 2023 3:52 pm

To: I

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>; || EEEEEIEIGNGNEEEEEEEEEE

Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>
Subject: Re: Interwaste odour complaint

HiJJj]. | have just arrived on site. | cannot detect any offensive odour

From: I

Sent: Monday, May 1, 2023 3:31:08 PM
To: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emi|v.McDowa|l@gw.govt.nz>;_

Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: RE: Interwaste odour complaint

Hi[Jjjjij] at this point in time we are operating as per usual. We are happy to investigate further if you
want us to.

KIND REGARDS

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz

| N H A I_O u\ q\ : We now supply medical gas
‘ S S3 and liquid nitrogen, contact

Medical oxygen us for a competitive quote.

TOITU

P SITE
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

Kind regards, ||| NN
He/Him
Kaiapiha Taiao| Environmental Protection Officer
N\ ’ Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

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
Sent: Friday, 13 January 2023 8:34 pm

To: I
cc: I

Subject: Notification received yesterday - please advise of waste processed

Hello I

Thanks JJjjjfor hosting me on-site this afternoon, much appreciated.

As mentioned, yesterday (12 January) at 11.34am we received a notification of odour emanating
from Interwaste.

The rostered duty officer attended and completed a 10 minute odour assessment beyond
Interwaste’s boundary. This was at 12:34pm.

The wind direction was southerly and ~34kph.

Given his ratings and descriptions of the smell, | need you to please provide records of all waste
received, stored and processed on site yesterday.

Please pinpoint what was processed in the middle of the day as far as possible.

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
Sent: Thursday, 27 April 2023 4:49 pm

To:

Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>; ||}

Subject: RE: Please respond to 2x odour complaints

Thanks [Jjjjjijfor your response and nice to meet you virtually.
Understood re. the blackberry and other vegetation around the stream.
| have saved this to file. As we could not attend yesterday | will not take this complaint any further.

Kind regards, Emily



From: [
Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2023 4:07 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Notification received Tuesday 14 February WGN110357

Please see attachment for our investigation report regarding the notification from Tuesday
14/02/23.

REGARDS

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz

We now supply medical gas

| N H A LO 9” =231 and liquid nitrogen, contact

Medical oxygen \ us for a competitive quote.

&;« .

TOITU
(=) ISITE
100%

GOLD



From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 5:06 PM

To: I

Cc: Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>

Subject: Notification received Tuesday 14 February WGN110357

Hello-

| received a notification about Interwaste yesterday. The notification was emailed to me and | don’t
work Tuesdays so only received this today.

This is an excerpt from the notification.

Throughout the day a 2/6 to 4/6 smell that is reminiscant of a public toilet that hasnt been cleaned

The smell increased to a 6/6 that is reminiscent of medical waste being processed, a chemical smell
that is undescribable

Please could you:

- Record this on Interwaste’s complaints register.
- Let me know (by this Friday 17") what you consider might have caused the smell that the
notifier describes.

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
author, and do not represent those of th



From: [

Sent: Monday, 15 May 2023 10:19 am

To: I
Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>; || EEEEEEIEGNGNEEEEEEEEEE

Nigel Priest <Nigel@interwaste.co.nz>; Ozae Cantu Da Silva <ozae@interwaste.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Odour Notification 15/5

Kia Ora |}
Thank you for your email.

| am responding to the enquiry pertaining odour notification, this morning between 0800hrs to
0945hrs our team member was cooking outside on our BBQ for team brunch which consist of meat
products and fresh produce for human consumption.

Should you require further information pertaining this odour notification, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Nga mihi nui,
I
INTERWASTE w

iona aste C

111LCH aliVlial VWwaolc LL

www.interwaste.co.nz

TOITU

) SITE
k/ 100%




From: I

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 10:03 AM

To: I

Subject: FW: Odour Notification 15/5

FYI.

From: I

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 9:12 AM

To:
Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: Odour Notification 15/5

Hil

Odour notification received this morning at 8.49. Notifier reports smells like burning flesh and burnt
hair.

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

Sent: Tuesday, 30 May 2023 11:50 am

To: I

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: Odour complaint 29 May

il

We received an odour notification yesterday at 916am. | attended at 1216pm and there was a van
unloading medical waste but | could not smell any odour. No breaches were detected.

Kind regards, || NN

He/Him
o Kaiapiha Taiao| Compliance, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer

Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

100 Cuba St, Te Aro, Wellington 6011

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz




From: Environmental Protection <Environmental.Protection@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 22 February 2023 1:13 pm

To: I

Cc: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Subject: Interwaste Odour complaint

il
We have had an odour complaint come through at 1254 pm today details as follows:

Odour intensity: 4/6
Nature: Plastic/chemical

Frequency: Occurring about once every hour throughout the day

He/Him

q Kaiapiha Taiao| Environmental Protection Officer

Greater Wellington Te Pane Matua Taiao

100 Cuba St, Te Aro, Wellington 6011

Follow us online: Facebook | Twitter | gw.govt.nz




From

Sent: Tuesday, 17 January 2023 12:13 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>; || EEEEEEIEGNNEEEEEE
cc:

Subject: RE: Notification received yesterday - please advise of waste processed

The pickups are usually done around 12-1230PM and the bins are moved back inside in a few
minutes depending on what the operators are doing when the bins are dropped off. | have asked the
operators to have the pickups and drop offs done inside the plant starting from today so any odour
coming out of them will pass through the biofilter.

REGARDS

INTERWASTE w

International Waste Ltd

www.interwaste.co.nz
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| N H A I_O u‘ !\ ,x @ We now supply medical gas
< ) and liquid nitrogen, contact

Medical oxygen | i us for a competitive quote.
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From: Emily McDowall <Emily.McDowall@gw.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 17 January 2023 11:49 am

Subject: RE: Notification received yesterday - please advise of waste processed

Thank{jjjjlj- What time were the tips brought back and how long were they outside for? Cheers,
Emily

From: [

Sent: Monday, 16 January 2023 5:51 pm

To: Emily McDowall <Emi|y.McDowaII@gw.govt.nD;_

Subject: RE: Notification received yesterday - please advise of waste processed

| had a good look at the waste coming in for the two days before and | couldn’t find anything that
would produce odour like the one described. We received 2646 kg of medical waste and 485 kg of
quarantine on Wednesday, and 3255 kg of medical waste and 4425 kg of quarantine waste on

Thursday. There were no animals of any kind for burial. The only thing | can think could smell is the

empty skips brought back by the Envirowaste back from the tip. They do smell a bit just like the
domestic wheelie bins at home. My intention is to get the pickups and drop offs done inside the
building so the skips don’t spend any time on the driveway before getting washed .

www.interwaste.co.nz
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greater WELLINGTON
Data record sheet for odour measurements 10705 ik
Site being monitored: !deﬁgg Assessors name: _
Location of assessment: _VAfe  Comavanma - Date: 412 202
Reason for investigation: COMPLAINT/PROACTIVE Consent no.
INITIAL IMPRESSIONS o be Initial character: ()7 gaa1¢ ,/ gund o rabb shy'
Time of the intial impression: 259 \ C Qdoov Initial general hedonic tone: =&

? ]

Initial odour intensity: > Plume width (if known): 6m¢+- 3] ﬂam frac e _poun ./q/1

Odour samples every 10 seconds. The time between the 10 seconds is disregarded (interval method). Breathe normally rather than sniffing.

Start time: Ig : (O

Intensity Character/notes Intensity Character/notes Scale of intensity

Istmin | 0 ¢ oas 1\ l 6thmin |0 o 6 Scale of intensity
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Wind direction:
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Based on your assessment on this occasion, which of the following applies:

[ | did not detect any odour

| did detect odour and consider it would not be objectionable at any location for any duration or frequency
| did detect odour and consider it would be objectionable, if it became continuous

(ou\ é De\e C\" Cz:\\f\:}
| did detect odour and consider it would be objectionable if it occurred on a regular or frequent basis s \de v < Ceccemav\®

Ll T 1

| did detect odour and consider it to be objectionable even in periods of short duration. =
Not O’ O @643

FINAL CHECKLIST

[ ] Upwind assessment completed. Record details below. If not, detail reason: N ndowr ¥ e w_ws( '

] Aerial photo/sketch showing location of assessment and upwind assessment attached : , S s

|| Are there potential witness statements to obtain YES/NO ( 3 3 NJ 0 g/ 3 “«
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10 February 2023 Wellington Office
100 Cuba Street

Te Aro, Wellington 6011
PO Box 11646

File No: WGN110357 Manners Street
Wellington 6142
12 Broken Hill Road T 043845708
F 04 385 6960

Kenepuru

www.gw.govt.nz

Porirua 5022

Via email: I
Attn: I

Dear I

Infringement Notice 1888 and formal warning for objectionable odour
from Interwaste on 12 January 2023

Thank you for your letter dated 1 February 2023, detailing your explanation of events that
surrounded the production of odour beyond Interwaste’s boundary on 12 January 2023. The
information you provided was considered in reaching a decision on the outcome of the incident. This
letter now concludes the Greater Wellington Regional Council’s investigation into this matter. You
have received this letter because you directed the discharge to air on 12 January 2023.

On this occasion we have decided to issue you with an infringement notice and formal warning for
the breaches of the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA) that you are responsible for, and to
recover the costs of the investigation from you.

Summary of investigation

On 12 January 2023, at 11.34am, Greater Wellington received a notification of odour allegedly
emanating from Interwaste. When the rostered enforcement officer spoke to the notifier, the
notifiers described the smell as “a strong and disgusting toxic waste smell” which had lasted
intermittently for between one minute and a few minutes at a time.

Around 12.30pm, the officer conducted a site visit. Standing beyond the Interwaste site boundary,
the officer detected a strong, unpleasant odour. He conducted an odour assessment from 12:34-
12:44pm, describing the odour overall as a “fleshy smell covered in bleach”. Some of his notes across
the ten minutes rate the smell as 4-6/6 at times and describe the smell as being “thick, heavy,
noxiously bad, [like] vomit / off meat / chemical[s] / faeces” and “like bleach over dead meat.”

170999-971342186-24

Wellington Office Upper Hutt Masterton office 0800 496 734
PO Box 11646 PO Box 40847 PO Box 41 WWwWw.gw.govt.nz

Manners St, Wellington 6142 1056 Fergusson Drive Masterton 5840 info@gw.govt.nz




The officer found the odour to be objectionable, even in periods of short duration.
Breach(es) of the RMA
This discharge of odour contravenes section 15(1)(c) of the RMA which states that:

no person may discharge any contaminant [...] from any industrial or trade premises into air
[...] unless the discharge is expressly allowed by a national environmental standard or other
regulations, a rule in a regional plan as well as a rule in a proposed regional plan for the same
region (if there is one), or a resource consent.

This discharge is not expressly allowed by a national environmental standard, a rule in a regional
plan or a resource consent. Interwaste’s resource consent WGN110357 [34191] allows Interwaste
to produce odour beyond its boundary, but under condition 6:

there shall be no discharges to air that are, in the opinion of an enforcement officer of the
Wellington Regional Council, noxious, dangerous, offensive or objectionable at or beyond the
legal boundary of the property from which the consent holder operates.

Infringement notice

Attached is an Infringement Notice issued under section 343C of the RMA. It is important that you
read and understand the Infringement Notice including the Summary of Rights on the reverse side,
which sets out the actions available to you if you wish to appeal this notice. Please note that if you
do not pay the infringement fee and do not deliver a letter requesting a hearing within 28 days after
the service of this notice, you will be served with a reminder notice requesting payment within a
further 28 days. If you do not pay the infringement fee and do not deliver a letter requesting a
hearing in respect of the alleged infringement offence within 28 days after the service of the
reminder notice, the notice will be referred to the court for collection of the fee and you may become
liable to pay court costs in addition to the infringement fee.

You should be aware that if you request a hearing and you are found guilty, or plead guilty, the Court
may impose a penalty which is different from the infringement fee set out in the infringement notice.
The penalty imposed by the Court may be more, less or the same as the infringement fee. The
penalties which the Court can impose at a hearing are in the case of a company, a fine up to $600,000
or in the case of an individual, a fine up to $300,000. You may wish to seek your own legal advice on
the matter.

Formal warning

On this occasion you have committed one offence against the RMA and have received only one
infringement notice. Please ensure that you take all necessary steps to comply with your obligations
under the RMA in future as we may not be so lenient if a further breach occurs. Please also note that

Page 2 of 4



this letter will form part of your compliance history and will be considered in the event of any future
incidents.

GWRC has a responsibility to enforce the RMA. Failure to comply with the RMA may result in
enforcement action including formal warnings, infringement notices or prosecution. More
information on potential penalties is available online at
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1991/0069/latest/DLM239042.html

and

http://www.legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/1999/0359/latest/whole.htmI#DLM300060

Cost recovery

Please find enclosed an invoice for costs incurred by GWRC in responding to a confirmed breach of
the Resource Management Act 1991. In accordance with our Resource Management Charging Policy,
a minimum standard charge of $260.00 will apply to all environmental incidents inspected.
Additional charges may apply in circumstances where the incident investigation costs exceed the
minimum standard charge.

These costs are sought to ensure that the actual and reasonable costs of GWRC’s compliance work
are shared with the party undertaking the non-compliant activity. The details of this breach are
summarised below.

Incident details

Incident: Odour

Date: 12.01.23

Impact: Objectionable odour

Responsible party: International Waste Limited (Interwaste)
Investigating officer: Emily McDowall

Section(s) contravened: 15(1)(c)

I[temised costs

Standard charge: $1000.00

Materials: SN/A

Other: $270.00 cost recovery (for incident attendance)
Subtotal: $1270.00

GST (15%) $40.50 (charged on the cost recovery only)
Total including GST: $1310.50

These costs are being recovered in accordance with section 150 of the Local Government Act 2002.
Please note that if payment is not received within 28 days after 10 February 2023, GWRC reserves
the right to refer the matter to a collection agency.
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If you have any questions about this matter please email me at emily.mcdowall@gw.govt.nz or call
me on 021-191-9689.

Yours sincerely

Mu-{b' md, ,»-s’r,.’.“’(
\ (¥

Emily McDowall
Resource Advisor
Environmental Regulation
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Notice number: / 888

Resource Management Infringement Notice
(Issued under the authority of section 343c¢ of the Resource Management Act 1991)

Enforcement authority Enforcement officer: Emily McDowall
Wellington Regional Council Authority: A warrant 941 issued by Wellington Regional
PO Box 11646, Wellington 6142 Council on 2 December 2019 and delegated authority

TO: International Waste Limited (Interwaste)

12 Broken Hill Road, Kenepuru
For: I Ve'/lington Operations Manager, Interwaste

You are alleged to have committed an infringement offence against the Resource Management Act 1991, as
follows:

Details of alleged infringement offence

Section of Resource Management Act 1991 contravened: section 15(1)(c) being an offence against section

338(1)(a) of the Resource Management Act 1991.

Nature of infringement:
Objectionable odour beyond the site boundary

This discharge contravenes section 15(1)(c) which states that: no person may discharge any contaminant [...]
from any industrial or trade premises into air [...] unless the discharge is expressly allowed by a national
environmental standard or other regulations, a rule in a regional plan as well as a rule in a proposed regional
plan for the same region (if there is one), or a resource consent.

This discharge is not expressly allowed by a national environmental standard, a rule in a regional plan or a
resource consent.

You have received this notice because you are the Wellington Operations Manager at Interwaste, the
business from which the odour emanated.

Location: 12 Broken Hill Road
Kenepuru
Porirua 5022
Date: 12 January 2023 Approximate time: 12.36pm

The fee for this infringement is $1460.50 including GST

Payment of infringement fee

The infringement fee is payable to the enforcement authority within 28 days after 10 February 2023

The infringement fee is payable to the enforcement authority
at 100 Cuba Street, Te Aro, Wellington or PO Box 11646, Wellington 6142




Payments by cheque should be made out to Greater Wellington Regional Council and crossed "Not
Transferable".

Signature of Enforcement Officer

Important
Please read summary of rights printed overleaf

Resource Management Infringement Notice
Notice no: 1888

Name: International Waste Limited (Interwaste) Invoice no: Invoice Number
Electronic Payment may be made to Bank A/c 06-0582-0104781-00 Payment made: $

Please put our invoice number in the reference field.
Date:

For manual payments please forward this slip and payment to:
Greater Wellington Regional Council
PO Box 11646, Wellington 6142




PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT




Summary of rights

Note: if, after reading this summary, you do not understand anything in it, you should consult a

lawyer immediately.

Payment

1.

If you pay the infringement fee within 28 days after the service of this notice, no further
action will be taken against you in respect of this infringement offence. Payments should be
made to the enforcement authority at the address shown on the front of this notice.

Note: if, under section 21 (3A) or (3C) (a) of the Summary Proceedings Act 1957, you enter
or have entered into a time to pay arrangement with an informant in respect of an
infringement fee payable by you, paragraphs 3 and 4 below do not apply and you are
not entitled either to request a hearing to deny liability or to ask the Court to consider
any submissions (as to penalty or otherwise) in respect of the infringement.

Further action

2.

If you wish to raise any matter relating to circumstances of the alleged offence, you should
do so by writing a letter and delivering it to the enforcement authority at the address shown
on the front of this notice within 28 days after the service of a reminder notice in respect of
the offence.

If you deny liability and wish to request a hearing in the District Court in respect of the
alleged offence, you must, within 28 days after the service of a reminder notice in respect of
the offence, deliver, to the enforcement authority at the address shown on the front page
of this notice a letter requesting a Court hearing in respect of the offence. The enforcement
authority will then, if it decides to commence court proceedings in respect of the offence,
serve you with a notice of hearing setting out the place and time at which the matter will be
heard by the Court.

Note: if the Court finds you guilty of the offence, costs will be imposed in addition to any
penalty.

If you admit liability in respect of the alleged offence but wish to have the Court consider
submissions as to penalty or otherwise, you must, within 28 days after the service of a
reminder notice in respect of the offence, deliver, to the enforcement authority at the
address shown on the front page of this notice a letter requesting a hearing in respect of the
offence AND in the same letter admit liability in respect of the offence AND set out the
submissions that you would wish to be considered by the Court. The enforcement authority
will then, if it decides to commence court proceedings in respect of the offence, file your
letter with the Court. There is no provision for an oral hearing before the Court if you follow
this course of action.

Note: costs will be imposed in addition to any penalty.
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Non-payment of fee

5.

If you do not pay the infringement fee and do not deliver a letter requesting a hearing within
28 days after the service of this notice, you will be served with a reminder notice (unless the
enforcement authority decides otherwise).

If you do not pay the infringement fee and do not deliver a letter requesting a hearing in
respect of the alleged infringement offence within 28 days after the service of the reminder
notice, you will become liable to pay costs in addition to the infringement fee (unless the
enforcement authority decides not to commence court proceedings against you).

Defence

7.

You will have a complete defence against proceedings relating to the alleged offence if the
infringement fee is paid to the enforcement authority at the address shown on the front
page of this notice within 28 days after the service of a reminder notice in respect of the
offence. Late payment or payment made to any other address will not constitute a defence
to proceedings in respect of the alleged offence.

(2) This paragraph describes a defence additional to the one described in paragraph 7.
This defence is available if you are charged with an infringement offence against any
of sections 9, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of the Resource Management Act 1991.

(2) You must prove either of the following to have the defence:

(a) that—

(i) the action or event to which the infringement notice relates was
necessary for the purposes of saving or protecting life or health, or
preventing serious damage to property, or avoiding an actual or likely
adverse effect on the environment; and

(ii) your conduct was reasonable in the circumstances; and

(iii) you adequately mitigated or remedied the effects of the action or
event after it occurred; or

(b) that—

(i) the action or event to which the infringement notice relates was due
to an event beyond your control, including natural disaster,
mechanical failure, or sabotage; and

(ii) you could not reasonably have foreseen or provided against the action

or event; and

(iii) you adequately mitigated or remedied the effects of the action or
event after it occurred.

(3) Subparagraph (2) does not apply unless—

(a) you deliver a written notice to the enforcement agency; and
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8A

(4)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(b)

(c)

in the notice, you—
(i) state that you intend to rely on subparagraph (2)(a) or (b); and

(ii) specify the facts that support your reliance on subparagraph (2)(a) or
(b); and

you deliver the notice—
(i) within 7 days after you receive the infringement notice; or

(ii) within a longer period allowed by a District Court.

If you do not comply with subparagraph (3), you may ask the District Court to give
you leave to rely on subparagraph (2)(a) or (b).

This paragraph describes a defence additional to those described in paragraphs 7 and
8. This defence is available if—

(a)

(b)

you are—
(i) a principal; or
(ii) an employer; or

(iii) the owner of a ship; and

you may be liable for an offence alleged to have been committed by—
(i) your agent; or

(ii) your employee; or

(iii) the person in charge of your ship.

If you are a natural person, including a partner in a firm, you must prove either of the
following to have the defence:

(a)

(b)

that you—

(i) did not know, and could not reasonably be expected to have known,
that the offence was to be, or was being, committed; and

(ii) took all reasonable steps to remedy any effects of the act or omission
giving rise to the offence; or

that you took all reasonable steps to—
(i) prevent the commission of the offence; and

(ii) remedy any effects of the act or omission giving rise to the offence.

If you are a not a natural person (for example, you are a body corporate), you must
prove either of the following to have the defence:
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8B

8C

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(a) that—

(i) neither the directors (if any) nor any person involved in your
management knew, or could reasonably be expected to have known,
that the offence was to be, or was being, committed; and

(ii) you took all reasonable steps to remedy any effects of the act or
omission giving rise to the offence; or

(b) that you took all reasonable steps to—
(i) prevent the commission of the offence; and
(ii) remedy any effects of the act or omission giving rise to the offence.

This paragraph describes a defence additional to the defences described in
paragraphs 7, 8, and 8A. This defence is available if you are charged with an
infringement offence against section 15A(1)(a) of the Resource Management Act
1991 (relating to dumping waste or other matter in the coastal marine area from a
ship, aircraft, or offshore installation).

In order to have the defence, you must prove all of the following in relation to the
act or omission that is alleged to constitute the offence:

(a) that the act or omission was necessary—
(i) to save or prevent danger to human life; or

(ii) to avert a serious threat to any ship, aircraft, or offshore installation;
or

(iii) in the case of force majeure caused by stress of weather, to secure the
safety of any ship, aircraft, or offshore installation; and

(b) that the act or omission was a reasonable step to take in all the
circumstances; and

(c) that the act or omission was likely to result in less damage than would
otherwise have occurred; and

(d) that the act or omission was taken or omitted in such a way that the likelihood
of damage to human or marine life was minimised.

This paragraph describes a defence additional to the defences described in
paragraphs 7, 8, 8A, and 8B. This defence is available if you are charged with an
infringement offence against section 15B(1) or (2) of the Resource Management Act
1991 (relating to certain discharges of a harmful substance, a contaminant, or water
in the coastal marine area from a ship or offshore installation).

You must prove either of the following to have the defence:

(a) that the harmful substance, contaminant, or water was discharged for the
purpose of securing the safety of a ship or an offshore installation, or for the
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(b)

purpose of saving life and that the discharge was a reasonable step to effect
that purpose; or

that the harmful substance, contaminant, or water escaped as a consequence
of damage to a ship or its equipment or to an offshore installation or its
equipment, and—

(i) such damage occurred without your negligence or deliberate act; and

(ii) as soon as practicable after that damage occurred, all reasonable
steps were taken to prevent the escape of the harmful substance,
contaminant, or water or, if any such escape could not be prevented,
to minimise any escape.

Queries/correspondence

0. When writing or making payment of an infringement fee, please indicate -

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

The date of the infringement offence; AND
The infringement notice number; AND

The identifying number of each alleged offence and the course of action you
are taking in respect of it (if this notice sets out more than 1 offence and you
are not paying all the infringement fees for all the alleged offences); AND

Your address for replies (if you are not paying all the infringement fees for all
the alleged offences).

Full details of your rights and obligations are set out in sections 341 to 343D of the Resource
Management Act 1991 and section 21 of the Summary Proceedings Act 1957.

Note: all payments, all queries, and all correspondence regarding this infringement must be
directed to the enforcement authority at the address shown.
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